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October 21,1999

Andrew Dember, Chief
Public Comrption Unit
U.S. Attorney, Southem District of New york
One St. Andrew's Plaza
New York, New York 10007

RE: (l) Investigation of systemic state governmental comrption
in which the NYS Attorney General is actively compliciious,
including by his litigation fraud in defending state judges and the
NYS commission on Judiciar conduct, sued for comrption;

(2) Intervention in Elena Ruth fussower, Coordirwtor ofthe
CenterforJudicial Accountabitity, Inc., acting pro bono publiio, v.
Commission on Judicial Conduct of the State ofNew forlc (Ny Co.
#e9-108551);

(3) Recusal of the u.s. Attorney and referral to the public
Integrity Section of the U.S. Justice Deparhnent's Criminal Division.

Dear Mr. Dember:

Thank you for your prompt return call on wednesday, septembe r 29h and your
invitation that I provide you with a summary of the allegations of systemic
governmental comrption, for which the Center for Judicial Accountability, Inc.
(CJA) seeks investigation and prosecution by the Public Comrption Unit oi some
other Justice Department entity. As you requested, this letter also identifies the
evidentiary support for those allegations and summarizes CJA's prior contacts with
the U.S. Attomey's Office for the Southem District of New York - as well as with
other units of the Justice Department.

As lou conceded, the Public Comrption Unit of the U.S. Attomey's Office, like the
Justice Department's Public Integrity Section, has particular jurisdiction to
investigate and prosecute state govemmental comrption which, because it involves
power l ofiicials and influential persons, is not investigated and prosecuted at the
state level. That is what is involved here, where individuals at the highest echelons
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ofNew York $ate government have comrpted their offices, yet are wholly insglated
from accountability either because of their own political power and influence or
because of the power and influence of those with whom they have personal and
professional ties.

This letter also reiterates CJA's request for intervention in the pending Article Zg
proceeding, Elena Ruth fussower, Coordinator of the Cinter for Judiciat
Accountability, ltrc., acting pro bono publico, v. Commission on Judicial Corduct
of the snte of New rort (Ny co. #99-l0s55l) - in which the commission on
Judicial Conduct is being sued for covering up state judicial comrption and, in
particular, the comrption of powerful, politicaily-connected state judges. The
Justice Department has an interest in ensuring that the Commission ir not corrupt,
much as it has an interest in ensuring the efiicacy of other state channels for reniew
of complaints of state judicial comrption, such as those which should be available
through the state District Attorneys, the state Attomey General, and the state judicial
process. This, because the absence of state mechanisms for addressing claims of
state judicial comrption results in aggrieved persons turning to the federal system:
filing complaints with the U.S. Attomey, the Justice Department's Public Integnty
Sectioq and the F.B.I., as well as burdening the fbJeral courts with lawsuits against
lawbreaking state judges and those complicitous in their misconduct undeisuch
statutes as 28 USC $1983. As herein demonstrated, when it comes to judicial
comrption, federal agencies, no less than the federal courts, engage in dishonest
pretense to deprive citizens of the redress to which they are lawfully entitled.

Because the requested investigation and intervention would expose systemic
govemmental comrption involving persons with whom staff of the U.S. Attorney's
offrce have personal and professional relationships - among them, Michele
Hirshman, formerly Chief of the Public Comrption Unitr, and paul Shechtman,
whose positions at the U.S. Attorney's Office for the Southern District of New
York included Chief Appellate Attorney, Chief of the General Crimes Unit, and
chief of the criminal Division - request is made that the ofiice of the U.s.
Attomey for the Southern District of New York recuse itself and refer the mafrer to
the Justice Department's Public Integrity Section. This would accord with the
policy prominently set forth in the Public Integrity's Section's most recent Report
to Congress under the heading "Recusals by United States Attorneys' Offices',:

I You declined to identiE, wtrether Ms. Hirshman - in whom you expressod complete
confidmce -- was your diret prdecessor.
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*...if the United States Attorney or a prosecutor in his or her office has had
e significant businesg social, political, or personal relationship with a subject
or principal witness in a comrption investigatioq it may be difficult, ard oiten
inappropriatg for that United states Attorney's bmce to handle thc
investigation. Cases involving comrption allegations in which the conflict ic
substantial are usually refened to the public IntegnU Section for
prosecution or direct operational supervision.' (Exhibit ..A-l-: lggT
Reporf p. l)

Prezumably, this policy implements 28 USC $528: 
"Disqualification of officers and

employees of the Department of Justice":

"The Attorney General shall promulgate rules and rcgulations2 which
require the disqualification of any officer or employee of the Department
of Justice, including a United states attorney or a member of such
attorney's staff, from participation in a particular investigation or
prosecution if such participation may result in a personal, financial, or
political conflict of interest, or the appearance thereof. Such rules and
regulations may provide that a willful violation of any provision thereof
shall result in removal from office." (Exhibit ,,A-2,,).

For your convenience, a Table of contents to this letter follows:

The Allegetions of systemic Governmentar corruption & cover-up ........... 4

The Supporting Evidence .......

cJA'r lrior compleints to the Public corruption unit of the u.S.
Attorney for the Southern District of New york and to the public
rntegrity section of the u.S. Justice Department's criminal Division........... 9

cJA's Prior contectr with the civil Division of the u.s. Attorney for
the Southern District of New York concerning rntervention in the
current Article 7t Proceeding against the Irtys commission on
Judicial Conduct ...........oo..... l4

Concluding Comments & Recusal Issues... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  l t

Request is hereby made for a copy of said promulgated rules and regulations.
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In the intere$ of saving time - both yours and mine - I refer you to cJA's $3,000
public interest d,"Restmining 'Liarc in the courtroom'ud on the public payroll,
(ID(IJ, 8/27197, pp. 34) (Exhibit *B'). It describes the comrption of the juai"i"t
process' both federat and state, byNew York's highest law enforcement odcer, the
state Attomey General and by state and federal judges - when the subject of the
litigation involves issues of state judicial comrption.

Detailed are three public interest cases, each defended by the state Attorney
General. In order of presentation in the ad, they are:

Q) Dons L. fussowerv. Commission onJudicial Conduct of the Snte of New
ro* (NY co. #95-l09l4l): an Article 7g proceeding 4gainst the state
Commission on Judicial Conduct for dismissing withoi investigation,
judicial misconduct complaints against politically-powerful state jirdges,
where it had not determined that the complaints were facially hcling in
merit -- the only basis upon which the Commission can lawfully dismiss
complaints without investigation (Judiciary Law g44.1) - and where the
complaints at issue were not only facially-meritorious, but documented as
to criminal conduct by siuing judges and judicial candidates;

Q) hris L &ssmerv. Hon. Guy Mangano, et al.: (AD 2d Dept, #9342v2s;
NY ct of Appeals: Mo. No. 529, ssD 4t;933;us sup. ct. #94-ts46): an
Article 78 proceeding against the Appellate Division, Second Department
for suspending Doris Sassower's law license, without written charges,
without reasons, without findings, without a pre-suspension hearing -
thereafter denying her any post-suspension hearing or appellate review as
to the basis for her suspension -- in retaliation for her lqgal challenge to the
political manipulation ofjudicial elections in the Ninth Judicial District of
New York by both Democratic and Republican party leaders - a legal
challenge "thrown" by fraudulent state judicial decisions;

(3) Doris L. kssower v. Hon. Guy Mangano, et ar. (94 civ. 4514 (JES);2d
Cir. #9G7805): a federal action under 23 USC 91983 against the Appellate
Division, Second Department based on its retaliatory suspension of the law
license of the aforesaid judicial whistle-blowing attorn€y and its comrption
ofthe Article 78 remedy in the kssowerv. Mangano Article 78 proceeding
in which it was aided and abetted by the state Attorney General, also a co-
defendant in the federal action.
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As described, the $ate Aftomey General had NO legitimate defense to thc pleaded
allegations of comrption in these three cases. For that reason, he engaged in a
modus opemndi of litigation fraud. In addition to ignoring fundamentaltnflict
of interest issues, he filed legally insuffrcien! factually pe{urious dismissal motions
in each case. Although these were made the subject of fuily-documented sanctions
applications, the cotrts ignored thern in fraudulent judicial decisions disnissing the
cas€s' thereby covering up the comrption of the state Commission on Judicial
Conduc( politically-connected state judges, and the state Attorney General -
documentarily established by the record before them.

CJA's efforts to obtain inve$igation of the comrption of the judicial process in thc
three public interest cases featured in"Restraining 'Liars "' have been unavailing.
Likewise unavailing have been CJA's efforts to obtain investigation of the
underlying com.rption allegations that were the subject of these cases. These effortq
spanning nearly a decade, have included (l) requests to the state Attorney General
personally for investigation and corrective action; (2) judicial misconduct
complaints filed with the New York State Commission on Judicial Conduct; (3)
ethics complaints filed with the New York State Ethics Commission; (4) criminal
complaints filed with the Distict Attorneys of both New York and Kings Counties;
(5) requests to Governor cuomo for appointment of a special pro.outo, - with
presentment to Governor Pataki of petitions signed by 1,500 New Yorkers for
appointment of an investigative commission; (6) requests to the New york State
Legislature and, in particular, to the Assembly and Senate Judiciary Committees for
an invesigative inquiry; and (7) requests to other state officials, among thenr, Mayor
Rudolph Giuliani and former Manhattan Borough President Ruth Messinger for
investigative action. All these state agencies and officials have either ignored
CJA's document-srpported complaints and requests - which is what has generally
occurred - or have sent us conclusory and demonstrably dishonest letters declining
to investigate.

Because ofthe inaction and cover-trp by state officials and agencies, the state judicial
comrption challenged by the three lawsuits continues unabated. Indeed, it has
metastecied to the "merit selection" process to the New York Court of Appeals. This
has now led to a fourth lawsuit - the current Article 78 proceeding against the
Commission on Judicial Conduct, where, inter alia, Govemor Pataki anaine Cnairtnan
of the State Senate Judiciary Committee, long knowledgeable that the Commission is
comrpt, are directly implicated in fraud in connection with the nomination and
confirmation of Appellate Division, Second Department Justice Atbert Rosenblatt to
the New York Court of Appeals, against whom a facially-meritorious judicial
misconduct complaint had been filed with the Commission relating to his Cturt of
Appeals' candidacy @xhibits 

"c","8',"F-1" to the verified paition). As in the pasq
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the state Attorney General is representing the Commission and, once agaiq ergeging
9th. sarne $ratagem of litigation fraud as describedin"Restraining 'Liars- 

@*ribit"B").

The Suonortins Evidence

The litigaion files of the three cases featured in"Restraining ,Liarc', provide the
means to redily rvrW the comrption of the judicial process in those cases - a fact
emphasized by the ad itself (Exhibit "B", p. 2). Likewise, the litigation file of the
current Article 78 proceeding again$ the Commission provides the mean sto rcadity
verify the Attorney General's litigation fraud in that proceeding, comrpting the
judicial process.

The ofiice of the U.S. Attorney for the Southern District of New york already
possesses a substantial portion of these litigation files, which were transmitted to
it to substantiate the necessity of its intervening in the cunent Article 78 proceeding
against the Commission - if for no other reuuon than to uphold the integrity of the
judicial process. These are:

(l) a copy of the file of the current Article 78 proceeding against the
commission on Judicial conduct, up to and including my iury za, tre
omnibus motion for disqualification of the Attorney General and for
sanctions again$ Mr. Spitzer personally, the Commissioq and against their
culpable safl including disciplinary and criminal referral of them for their
litigation misconduct;

(2) acoyy of the file of the prior Article 78 proceeding again$ the Commission
on Judicial Conduct;

(3) a copy of Doris Sassower'sunoplnsed paitionfor a writ of certiorari and
her supplemental brief in her $1983 federal action against the Appellate
Division, Second Department and the state Attorney General (US S.Ct.
#e8-106).

The foregoing file evidence is ALL part of the record of the current Article 7g
proceoding against the Commission. Specifically, it is part of my July 2gm omnibus
motion. This may be seen from the inventory of the free-standing file folders (IJtr)
substantiating that motion, annexed to my supporting July 28th atrdavit3. For your

3 &e, "File Folder I: Prior Article 78 Proceeding against Respondent" , to wit,the file of
the Doris L. &ssower v. Commission Article 78 proceeding; and 'Tile Folder II: J'anuary 27,
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convenience, a further copy of that inventory is annexed hereto as Exhibit..C-lo.

Likewise part of my July 28th omnibus motion is evidence of CJA's exhanstirrc
efforts to obtain investigation and prosecution by Attorney General Spitzer himsel{,
as "the People's Lawyer", including by Mr. spitzer's so-called ..p.rbli" integrity
unit", and by the New York state Ethics commission - the state agency harrirrg
disciplinary jurisdiction over both the state Attorney General *a tt " ,t t"
commission on Judicial conduct. This eviden"" "orrrirt, of my sworn factual
recitation at t[T24-35,40-103 of my July 28n moving affidavig substantiated by
documentary proof. As it relates to Attorney General Spitzer, this documentary
proof consists of CJA's correspondence with him and his offrce, annexed as
Exhibits "B", "c", "D", "F', "G', "I", and "J" to that affrdavit. As it relatgs to the
Ethics Commission, the documentary proof consists of CJA's ethics complaints
against the Attorney General and commission on Judicial conduct:

(l) cJA's March 26, 1999 ethics complaint against, inter alia, Attorney' 
General Spitzer personally (at pp. zl-zg)and itre Commission on Judicial
Conduct (at pp. 25'27), based on the events giving rise to this Article 7g
proceeding. By reason of the Ethics Commissioners' disqualifying conflicts
of intere*, as therein particularized (at pp.4-7),the complaint seeks referral
of the ethics complaint to Attorney General Spitzer's "publi" integrity unit'
and, upon determination of his own disqualifuing conflicts oi interest,
referral to the Public Integrity Section of the U.S. Justice Department,s
Criminal Division. The March 26, lggg ethics complaint is annexed as
Exhibit "E'to my July 28ft affrdavit;

(2) CJA's Septernber 14, 1995 ethics complaint 4gainst the Attomey General
and Commission on Judicial Conduct, based on their litigation fraud in the
prior Article 78 proceeding and failure to take corrective steps. The
September 14, 1995 ethics complaint, to which is annexed cJA's March
22,1995 ethics complaint against the Commission for its protectionism of
politically-powerfuljudges, is contained in "File Folder I: Riftin Docs"
(#l);

(3) CJA's Decernber 16, lggT ethics complaint against the Attorncy General,
based on his litigation misconduct in.the $1983 federal action and failure

1999 Lcttff;", to wit, the cert petition and supplemental brief n the Doris L. &ssower v.
Mangano fiderd action.
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' to take corrective steps. The Deccmb€r 16, 1997 ettrics complaint is
contained in'eFile Folder I: Riftin Docs,'(#9).

These documentary mderials establish the rctive complicity of the Attonrey Gen€rat
and the Ethics Commission in the qystemic govemmental comrption forwirich CJA
has sought investigation. This systemic comrption is most comprehensively
detailed by CJA's March 26, lW ethics complaint - which is not only directed
against the commission on Judicial conduct (at pp. 2s-27) and the- Attorney
General (at pp 27-29),but against an array ofpublic off"err and agencies, the most
powerful being Governor Pataki (at pp. 2, 14-22) and including the Ethics
Commissioners (at pp.7'll), most particularly, their Chairman, paul Shechtnan (at
pp. 2, l4-20)t and their former Executive Director, Richard Rifkin - now Mr.
Spitzer's Deputy Attorney General for State counsel (at pp. r,12-14)- and the
New Yor( State commission on Judicial Nomination (at pp. 22-24).

The balance ofthe file ofthe current Article 78 proceeding - subsequent to my July
28th omnibus motion - establishes both the continuing litigation fraud of tn"
Attorney General in this Article 78 proceeding directly attributable to Mr. Spitzer
himself, and the continuing complicity of the Ethics Commission. These further
materialsaconsist of: (l) the Attorney General's August l3th Memorandum in
opposition to my omnibus motion; and (2) my september 24thReply Memorandum
and reply affidavit. Among the pertinent exhibits annexed to my reply affrdavit are:

(l) CJA's September 15, l99g letter to the Ethics Commission, constituting
a supplement to the March 26,1999 ethics complain! and detailing the
Ethics Commission's wilful nonfeasance in connection therewith, as
well as in connection with this Article 78 proceeding - as to which the
Ethics Commission's intervention was sought by Notice of Right to
Seek Intervention. The September 15, 1999 letter is Exhibit "G'io my
reply affidavit;

(2) cJA's September 7, lg.99 letter to Andrew weissmann, Deputy chief
of the Criminal Division of the U.S. Auorney for the Eastern District of
New York, transmitting a copy of cJA's March 26, lggg ethics
complaint, with ALL the voluminous documentation it enclosed - in
conjunction with its criminal investigation of Govemor Pataki. By

a Also transmittod is my October ls leter to Justice Zweibl,the third judge assigrrod to
$e gqqt Article 78 proceeding, relative to the threshold issue of his recusal. Or O"toU", gA,
Justice Zweibel recused himself.
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reason ofthe high-lerrcl oomrption detailed b th" March 26,lggg ethics
complaint involving the state's highest elected official and its highest
law enforcement officer- in addition to members of the state legislature
-- the letter (at p. 5) exprcssly requested that the complaint beiefened
to the u.s. Justice Department's public Integrity Section for
investigation and prosecution. The September 7,lggg letter is Exhibit

."fI'to my reply affidavit.

cJA's Prior complaints to the public cormption unit of the
u.s. Attorney for the Southern District of New york and to the
Public rntegrity section of the u.s. Justice Department,s
Criminal Division

The comrption of the judicial process in the three public interest cases featured in*Restmining 'Lian "'(Exhibit "B") has been the subject of previous complaint by
CJA to both the Public Comrption Unit of the U.S. Attorney for the Southern
District of New York and the Public Integrity Section of the U.S. Justice
Department's Criminal Division - each complaint transmitting the relevant case
files to substantiate the allegations of fraud committed by the state Attomey General
and state and federal judges. These complaints are part of my July 2gdomnibus
motion in the current Article 78 proceeding against the Commission - and in your
possession

6p6-38 of my Juty 28th moving affrdavit detail CJA's contacts with Michele
Hirshman, formerly Chief of the Public Comrption Unit and now Attomey General
Spitzer's First Deputy Attorney General. The relevant documents, referred to in
those paragraphs, are contained in "File Folder I: Hirshman Docs" (Exhibit..C-l',).
They are:

(l) CJA's initial August I, 1995 complaint concerning the comrption of the
judicial process by the state Attorney General and state judges in the prior
Article 78 proceeding against the Commission and in the Article ZS
proceeding against the Appellate Division, Second Department - the two
Article 78 proceedings subsequently featured in,,Restraining,Liars",
@xhibit 

"A'). Substantiating this complaint were copies of the relevant
court pap€rs: the file of the Commission case and the cert papers in the
Article 78 proceeding against the Appellate Divisiorq SecondDepartment.
Additionally, and demonstrating the cover-up on the state GveL the
complaint transmitted CJA's unresponded{o lvlarch 14,lgg5letter to the
Brooklyn District Attorney, particurarizing the nonfeasance and
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misfeasance of his Comrption Inve$igation Division in connction wipr
cJA's criminal complaint against the Appellate Division, second
Department justices who had subverted the Article 7g remedy in the
case against themselves and participated in the retaliatory order
suspending Doris Sassower's law license;

(2) cJA's August 17,1995 note as to the necessity of the u.s. Attorney's
intervention in the prior Article 7g proceeding 4gainst the commission
to halt the subversion of the state judicial process, covering up state
judicial comrption. The note was written on a copy of cJA'slubnrn"a
Letter to the Editoq "commission Abandons Investigarive Mandate,,
(NYLJ,8/la/95);

(3) crA's May 6, 1997 letter to Ms. Hirshman, transmitting a three-page
analysis of the fraudulent judicial decision in the prior Articre 7g
proceeding against the commission under a May s, ldgl memorandum
identifying a long list of government offices and-public leaders who had
failed to respond to the file evidence of the comrption that had occurred
in that case - the u.S. Attorney for the Southern District of New york
among them. The May s,1997 memorandum with its appended analysis
is Exhibit "A" to the Verified Petition in the current Articie 7s proceeding.
Additionally, the May 6, lggT letter requested confirmation as to whethJr
Ms. Hirshman had received a copy of cJA's March 5, 1996 letter to the
Manhattan District Attorney, particularizing the nonfeasance and
misfeasance of his Special Prosecutions Bureau in connection with the
criminal complaint cJA had filed against the commission on Judicial
Conduct;

(a) Ms Hirshman's May 19, 1997 letter to cJd whiclq by a bald, single
sentence, stated: "there did not appear to be a basis to initiate a federal
criminal investigation" - without confronting cJA's file proof of the
com.rption of the judicial process in the two Article 7g proceedings again*
the commission on Judicial conduct and against the Appellat.biri'rioq
Second Department;

(5) Ms. Hirstrman lwre27,1997 letter to cJd retuming: (a) the enctosures
to cJA's August l, 1995 letter including the files of the two Article 7g
proceedings and CJA's March 14,lgg5letter to the Brooklyn District
Attorney; and (b) cJA's August 17,1995 note annotating its Letter to
the Editor, "commission Abandons Investigative Manclar€" @J,8lr4/es).
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As identified in t[37 of my July 28th moving affrdavit, these retumed mderials were"in uncreased, apparently unread condition". As identified in ![3g, they were
thereafter mailed to Lee Radek, Chief of the Justice Department's public Integrity
Section under a July 27 , lggS letter so that he could *see this for [him]self - and
make [his] own independent assessment of these documents" ("t p. 5). The letter,
which annexed all the relevant correspondence with Ms. Hirshman(as'Exhibit..G'
thereto), is contained in File Folder I: Hirshman Docs.,'(#4).

The primary purpose of the July 27,1998 letter, however, was to obain criminal
investigation and prosecution of the Second Circuit judges who had wholly
comrpted the federal judicial/appellate/disciplinary processes in the kssower v.
Mangano $1983 federal action - the third case featured in "Res training,Liars,,
(Exhibit "B") - and to obtain the Public Integrity Section's endorsement of Doris
Sassower's request for the Solicitor General's amicus cariae support for her
petition for a writ of certiorari then pending before the Supreme Courtt. For these
reasons, the July 27, 1998 complaint enclosed a full copy of the Second Circuit
record in the case. The letter also chronicled (at pp. 3-6) - and documented by
correspondence annexed as exhibits - CJA's attempts, beginning in 1991, to obtain
federal investigation of the underlying political manipulation oi;udi"ial elections
in the Ninth Judicial District of New York, of the fraudulent state court decisions
that had "ttlrown" two Election Law challenges, including the one brought by Ms.
Sassower, of the retaliatory suspension of her law license by the Appellate Divisioq
Second Department, and of the Attorney General's comrption oithe Article 7g
remedy both in Ms. Sassower's Article 78 proceeding 4gainst the Appellate
Division, Second Department and in her Article 7g proceeding against the
Commission on Judicial Conduct.

Thereafter, when Ms. Sassower filed a supplemental brief with the Supreme Court,
highlighting, inter alia, that the Attorney General had waived opposition to the cert
petitiorL thereby conceding the truth of its recitation of the com.rption of the federal
judiciaVappellate/disciplinary processes, a copy of the supplemental brief was
transmitted to Mr. Radek under cJA's September 4, l99g memorandum. This
memorandum also pointed out that whereas the cert petition had detailed the
breakdown of checks within the Judicial Branch to address comrpt federal judicial
conduct, the nrpplemental brief chronicld "the breakdown of checkson federalludicial
misconduct within the Legislative and Executive branches of government". The public
Integnty Section's non-response to the July 27,1998 complaint was included as pan

5 Doris Sassower's amian ariaerequest to the Solicitor Crcneral rvas by l€frer datod July
20,1998 - a copy of which was enclosed with the July 27,199g letter to Mr. naaet
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of the Exocutivc branch breakdowq as was the Solicitor General's inappiopriate
resporul€ to Doris Sassower's otticws caraie request6.

Thereafter, by aNovember 6, l99B memorandum, cJA transmitted to Mr. Radek
a copy of Doris Sassower's petition for rehearingT, demonstrating that the
breakdown of checks within the Judicial Branch extended to the Suprelne Court.
This included the Justices' refusal to discharge their supervisory and ethical duty,
when faced with a record that not only showed the Second Circuit's annihilation of
all adjudicative standards to protect comrpt high-ranking state judges and the state
Attorney General, but the breakdown of checks in all threebranchls of the federal
government to address the criminal conduct by federal judges here at issue. Such
a record required, at very least, that if the Justices did not grant the cert petition, that
they refer the subject judges and state officers for disciplinary and criminal
investigation - alternative relief expressly requested by both the cert petition and
supplemental brief.

Of course, the Justices could only discharge this duty if they were a fair and
impartial tribunal - which is why Doris Sassower filed a writtin application that
they disclose the facts bearing upon the appearance of their lack of impartiality, as
required by federal law and ethical rules applicable to them. Among the iacts
identified by Ms. Sassower's application as bearing upon the "pp"oir,"" of the
Justices' lack of impartiality were those relating to their personal-and professional
relationships with the Second Circuit judges and the defendant state juJgeg as well
as their animus against George Sassower - the former husband of Doris Sassower
- by reason of his long-standing whistle-blowing 4gainst the Supreme Court for
covering up the com.rption of federal and state judges and other public ofiicials,
which, for many, many years, he had been presenting to the Justices for review.
Since the Justices could not address these facts without exposing their disqualifytng
biases - which they were determined to act upon -- they simply ignored the written
disclosure,/recusal application and proceeded to deny the cert peiition without any
disciplinary or criminal referrals.

" &e pp. 8-10 of tlrc supplemental brief.

7 The petitim fa relrearing is not part of the record befo,re thc Cqrt in the curreirt Article
78 proceeding -- although part of the massive evi&ntiary proof supporting CJA's March 26,lggg
ethics conplaint. Because of its importance, a copy is enclosed, togetlrer *ith CJA" November 6,
1998 memorandum - also part of the March 26,lggg ethics complaint (at pp. 4-5, fir. 2).
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By later dated April 12, 1999 (Exhibit"D), the Public Integttty Section's Deputy
Chief, Jo Ann Farrington responded, simultaneously returning all the transmiued
materials - except for the luly 27 , l99g complaint and cJA,s November 6, l99g
memorandum, substantiated by the rehearing petition. All the materijs Ms.
Hirshman had returned were arnong the materiars returned by Ms. rrrrinjon

Without addressing ury of the document-supported facts in the tqryd e;grt
petition' srpplemental brie{, and rehearing fititioq and without iAentifying the
Novenrber 6, 1998 nremorandurq lrrls. Fanington's April lZ,lggg letter preenaj mat
cJA's July 27, 1998 complaint and september 4, l99g memorandum had
complained about "incorrectly decided" ..court rulings". In so doing, Ms.
Farrington employed the same mischaracterization * rh" had in dismisJng an
earlier criminal complaint against Second Circuit judges, which she also pretended
was about "individual disagreement" with "rulings-.-In fac! the earlier complaint
was about the Second Circuit's comrption of the judicial process by a fraudulent
and retaliatoryjudicial decision, intended to injure the family of George Sassower,
whose whistle-blowing advocacy against Second Circuit judges wi within the
direct, personal knowledge of the Justice Department.

Although Ms. Farrington's April 12, 1999 letter refers to the public Integrity
Section's May 17, 1996 letter dismissing that earlier complaint, she does not
disclose that it was she who signed it - or that the July 27 , 1998 complaint expressly
criticized her (at p. 7), by name, for the May li, 1996 letter, protesting her
mischaracterization of the earlier complaint.

Indeed, the July 27,1998 complaint stated:

*At best, Ms. Farrington's [May 17,1996l letter reinforces that the public
Integrity Section is in dire need of guidance as to when judicial decisions
are properly the subject of criminal investigation. The straightforward
governing principle, set forth at pp. 2s-26 of the enclosed sorrorr.r u.
Mangano petition and relevant to our request herein for criminal
investigation and prosecution of the Second circuit, is that .judges who
render dishonest decisions - which they know to be devoid of factual or
legal basis - are engaging in criminar and impeachable @nduct.,, (at p. 7)

Although it is the record before the court that establishes if a judicial decision is
factually fabricated - and the extent thereof - Ms. Farrington's April 12,1999lettq
does not discuss the record of the fussower v. Mangano federal-action - let alone
identify that it was among the "materials" transmitted wittr the July 27,l9..[/g
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Asfor Ms. Farrington's pretense that the "materials' supporting the complaint -
which she does not identify -- were "carefully reviewed", tfr" ̂ "t"rias she retumed,
like the materials Ms. Hirshman returned nearly two years earlier, were ..in
uncreased, apparently unread" condition. This not only includes the copy of the
underlying Second Circuit r@ord, but the bound volumes of the petition ibr awrit
of certiorari and supplemental brie{, whose bindings showed no sign of ever having
been bent back. Those exact volumes are alreJy in the possession of the U.S.
Attorney's office - having been transmitted as part of my omnibus motion in the
current Article 78 proceeding against the Commission, where they are in ..File
Folder II: January 27, 1999 Letter" (Exhibit "c-1"). As for the second circuit
record and the other papers returned by Ms. Farrington, they are transmitted
herewith, for your inspection, in the same box in which they were retumed to us -
with the addition of a duplicate copy of CJA's November 6, 1998 memorandum and
substantiating rehearing petition, which Ms. Farrington's April 12, 1999 letter
neither returned nor referred to.

This is the background to CJA's contacts with the Civil Division of the U.S.
Attomey's office for the Southem District of New York in connection with CJA's
request for its intervention in my Article 78 proceeding again$ the Commission on
Judicial Conduct.

CJA'g Prior Contacts with the Division of the U.S.
Attorney Concerning Intervention the Current Article 78

The Civil Dvision ofthe U.S. Attomey for the Southem District of New york was
served with the Verified Petition, Notice of Petition, and Notice of Right to Seek
Intervention on Thursday, April 22,1999. The return date, as reflected UV ttre Notice
of Petition, ws May l4th.

on wednesday, May 5s, having received no response from the u.S. Attorney's
o{fice, I telephoned the office [2t2-637-273s (ai I l:55 am.)] and spoke to Ellen
Villalobos, Chief Clerk of the Civil Division. Ms. Villalobos informed me that the
case had not yet been assigned, but stated that she would bring it to the attention of
the Civil Division's Chie{ Jane Booth. The next day, Thursday, May 66, the same
day as I filed the proofs of service with the Cour! I delivered to the-U.S. etto-"y

Civil
r i n t
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a corrected copy ofdre V€rified Pcition and Noticest. At th" same time, I delivered
the same copy of the file ofthe prior Article 78 proceeding again* the Commission
as had been tansmitted to Ms. Hirshman under CJA's August I, 1995 coverletter;
which she returned under her June 27, lggT coverletter; thereafter sent to Mr.
Radek as part of the luly 27,1998 complain! and returned by Ms. Farrington under
her April 12, 1999 coverletter. Reflecting CJA's delivery of the file to the U.S.
Attorney on May 6,1999 are stamped receipts on copies of coversheets @xhibit 

*C-
2"').

on Monday, May 106, hearing nothing back from the u.s. Attorney,s offrce, I
telephoned and again spoke to Ms. Villalobos. She told me that the papers were
going to go to Kay Gardiner, one of the civil Division's Deputy chiefs. She
informed me that Ms. Gardiner, just back from maternity leave, was expected to be
in later in the day.

The following day, Tuesday, May l t\ t catea Ms. Gardin er l2t2-637-2696(l l:10
a.m.)], and spoke with her briefly. she stated she had gotten the papers from Ms.
villalobos at 5:00 p.m. the day before and would call me the next day.

I received no telephone call from Ms. Gardiner the next day. consequently, on
Tlursday, lvfav l3n, I called her (l l:35-l l:50 a.m.). This was thl day before the ieturn
date of the Article 78 Petition. I emphasized to l\ds. Gardiner that thl Commission had
NO legitimate defense to the proceeding and that the only way it could survive the
laws'rit is if the case were'thrown" by a frar.rdulent judicial decision - as had happened
in the prior Article 78 proceeding against the Commission - evidenced by the copy
of the file of that proceeding that I had delivered to the U.S. Attorney the week
before (Exhibit *C'2"). I emphasized the need for the U.S. Auorney's intervention
to safeguard the integrity of the judicial process - which was now even more
exigent by reason of the Attomey General's increasingly evident litigation
misconduct in the proceeding, replicating his litigation misconduct in the prior
proceeding, which I discussed with her. Ms. Gardiner stated that she had sent a
memo to Ms. Booth, but that the case had not yet been assigned.

I did not hear back from Ms. Gardiner and, on Friday, May 2la (3:45 p.m.), left a
voice mail message for her inquiring as to who had been assigned the case. I

t Anurg the corrections was the address of the U.S. Attorney to reflect the ad&ess of the
Civil, nth€r than Criminal, Division. This, because when my process seryer tried to serve thc
Notice of Right to Seek Intervention, etc. on the Criminal Division, he was turned away and
directed to the Civil Division.
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emphasized that the Attomey General's litigation mismnduct was now even more
pronounced, necessitating the u. s. Auorney' s intervention.

Over thc ne>d two months! I hcard nothing ftom Ms. Gardiner tr arryone elsc a dre
U.s. Attorney's office. Meantime, I worked on my July 2gth o1nnibu, motion to
disqualify the Attorney General and for sanctions agarnri him and the Commission
for their litigation misconduct. on Tuesday, August 3'd, with that motion
completed, I telephoned Ms. Gardiner (10:10 a.m.). From her recorded voice
message' I learned that she was on vacation until August 16ft and that in her
absence matters were to be refened to Ed Smith [212437-2726].rthereupon called
Mr. smith and left a message on his voice mail that I would be dropping offa copy
of the file in the Article 78 proceeding in further support of my t"qu"rtlor the U.S.
Attorney's intervention - as to which I had received no response. The following
day, wednesday, August +tr 110:05 am.), I spoke with Mr. Smith, who advised tha
he was just temporarily filling in for Ms. Gardiner. He promised that the Article 7g
proceeding "will be the first thing she sees when she comes back" on Aug. 166

On Friday, August 6fr, t delivered a copy of what was then the full file of the Article
78 proceeding ending with my July 28ft omnibus motion. Included therewith were
the free-standing file folders of documentary proof in support of that motion
(Exhibit "C-1"), excepting "File Folder I: Prior Article 78 proceedinc acainst
Respondent", handdelivered to theu.s. Attomeyon May 6s 6xtriuit..c--2")] Mr.
smith, who was called to authorize receipt of my August 6ft delivery, refused to
stamp coversheets reflecting the transmittal, notwithstanding I pointed out that the
May 6ft transmitted materials had been receipted, as likewiJ th.g 6;il ii; Noti".
of Right to Seek Intervention.

On Ttursday, August lgn, t telephoned Ms. Gardiner, leaving a message on her voice
mail, inquiring as to who was reviewing my intervention request, the outcome of her
memo to Ms. Booth, and the U.S. Attorney's procedures for handling the conflict of
interest issues presented by the fact that the omnibus motion chronicled the official
misconduct of Mr. Spitzer's second in command Ms. Hirshman while Chief of the
U'S. Attomey's Public Comrption Unit - misconduct gving rise to this proceeding.
six days later, on wednesday, August 25rh, I again cailed Ms. Gardinei, leaving a
similar voice mail message for her. on Friday, August 276,ileft a further voice
mail message for Ms. Gardiner, stating that unless I heard from her by the end of
the day, I would be contacting Ms. Booth directly.

on Monday, August 30tr, before calling Ms. Booth, I tried yet again to reach Ms.
Gardiner - this time with success. Ms. Booth informed me that ,h" * now Chief
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of the Environmcntal unite and that the casc was being reviewod by s"ru
Shudofsky, Chief of the Civil Rights Unit, who would be sending me a letter. I
stated that I expected that Ms. Shudofsky would want to speak with me before
sending me a letter and that I would be calling her. Ms. Booth asked me to
elaborate on the conflict of interest issue, which I did.

In a letter dated and postmarked the next day, August 31.. (Exhibit ..E-), Ms.
Shudofsky advised that the information I had submitted "alleging civil'rights
violations" by the Commission on Judicial Conduct and Attorney C*grA had been"carefully reviewed", but that this information "did not implicate the federal civil
rights laws over which this Offrce has jurisdiction." The letter made no mention of
CJA's intervention request other than to state "It is apparent from the materials that
you have provided that you are currently pursuing your allegations against these
entities in a litigation that you have filed in New york state Supremebourt.',

In response, I telephoned Ms. shudofsky on Friday, September rct.I2,12437-26gj
(9:12 a.m.)], leaving a voice mail message that she should call me concerning her
August 3l st letter, which I described as "incomprehensible", 

further stating ttrat ttre
transmitted litigation papers should not be returned. I left another voicelessage
for her on Monday, September 136 (l:30 p.m.) to the same effect and then 4gain,
two weeks later, on Monday, September 27th (9:5s a.m.), in which I inquired as to
why the case had been directed to the Civil Rights Division, rather thanthe public
Comrption Unit, where it properly belonged.

9 Yeday, Seplernb 2gh,having received no retum call from Ms. Shudofslcy
(l l:25 am.), I telephoned Ms. Booth, leaving a message with her secretary about
the mishandling of this important public comrption case by Ms. Gardiner and Ms.
shudofsky. In response to my inquiry as to who was the head of the U.S. Attomey's
Public Comrption Unit, I was told that it was Andrew Lachow and given his phone
number 1212437-25501. I immediately telephoned Mr. Lachow and was informed
by his voice mail message that he is on extended leave, with his cases reassigned
to you' It was then that I called you[212437-2563],leaving avoice mail message.
Shortly thereafter, you returned the call, spending nearly half an hour in
conversation with me.

At your express request, I did not arrange to have the file of the current Articte 7g
proceeding against the Commission transferred to you from the Civil Division of the

' I understand that Ms. Gardiner was fornrerly Chief of dF U.S. Attornry,s Tax ndBankruptcy Unit.
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Y | .e"-*.y's 
offi@, as I had offered to do when wc spoke. Howwcr, on Tuesday,

october 5-, when I\'Is. Shudofsky belatedly telephoned me (2:45 p.m.) - 3-ll2 weeks
after the fir* of my three voice mail messages for herro - it seemed logcal to request
that she transfer the file to you so that you would have it in conjunaion-with this letter.

During Ms. Shudofsky's October 56 telephone conversation with me,I called her
attention to the front-p4ge $ory that appeard in that day's New york Law Journal,"state commission can Refuse to Investigate Judgi, 1n*r,iuit r";3uout tt "
dismissal of another Article 78 proceeding 4gainstlh" Co--ission on Judicial
Conduct - this one brought by Michael Mantell, Esq. I told her that I had already
spoken to Mr. Mantell, a CJA member, had made arrangements to obtain from him
a copy of the file of his Article 78 proceeding and that I believed that Mr. Mantell's
case was yet a further example of how state courts protect a dysfunctional and
comrpted Commission on Judicial Conduc! aided and abetted by the state Attorney
General.

My rwiew of the file and the dismissal decision in Mr. Mantell's case has now fully
substantiated my initial belief that the dismissal decision is a fraudulent cover-up
and that the Attomey General engaged in litigation misconduct in that case as well.
Once I have completed a written analysis of the decisioq I will send it to you, along
with the file.

Since the Manhattan Di*rict Attomey was - like the U.S. Attorney for the Southern
District of New York - served on April 22, lggg with Notice of Right to seek
Intervention in the current Article 78 proceeding - and likewise received a hand-
delivered copy of the July 28th omnibus motion on August 6th, I enclose CJA,s
letter of today's date to the Manhattan District Attorney. Said letter, inter alia,
initiates criminal complaints against the Attorney General and Commission on
Judicial Conduct, based on their subversion of the judicial process in the current
Article 78 proceeding. Annexed thereto, as exhibits, is CJA's prior correspondence
with the Manhattan District Attomeyrr, including cJA's initial May lg,lggs

r0 It was wcler to nre wtrether Ms. Shudofsky's belated call was prompted by her
krcrvledge thst I had been in contact with you - and/or the result of my otherwise 

'unretunrcd

telephone nressage for Ms. Booth.

]l - 4ryg that correspondence is CJA's unresponded-to March 5, 1996 letrer to the
Manhattur District Attorney, to which the U.S. Attomey for the Southem Dshict was an irdicated
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criminal complaint again$ the Commission and a description of CJA's September
19, 1995 supplemental complainf based on the prior Article 78 proceeding. From
these you can see for yourself the Manhatmn District Attorney's record of
protectionism of the Commission and Attorney General -- necessitating the U.S.
Attomey's investigation and prosecution of these criminal complaints, as well as of
the broader criminal complaint presented herein of systemic governmental
comrption, reaching beyond the Manhattan District Attorney's jurisdiction to
include the Governor, state Ethics Commission, and the Chairman of the Senate
Judiciary Committee, atnong others.

Obviously, both the offrce of the U.S. Attorney for the Southern District of New
York and the office of the Manhattan Distict Attorney have substantial conflicts of
interest in objectively evaluating these complaints and intervention in the current
Article 78 proceeding against the Commission. Staffin both offices have personal
and professional relationships with those implicated in the com"rption and cover-up
here at issue. In additiorr to relationships with your predecessor, Michele Hirshmaq
now serving as Mr. Spitzer's First Deputy Attorney General, are relationships with
Paul Shechtman, Chairman of the state Ethics Commission, whose long-standing
protectionism of the Attorney General and Commission on Judicial Conduct is
highlighted by cJA's March 26,lggg ethics complaint (at pp. l-2,7-!4),updated
by cJA's september 15, 1999 supplement thereto (at pp. l, 6- l0), itsetr
supplemented by tffl3, 7'12 of my September 24th reply affidavit. tvtr. Shechtman
worked for both the U.S. Attorney for the Southern District and the Manhattan
District Attorney. Indeed, between the time he was Chief Appellate Attorney and
Chief of the General Crimes Unit of the U.S. Attorney's office for the Souihern
District of New York (1981-1985) and Chief of the Criminal Division of the U.S.
Attorney's office for the southern District of New york (1993-1995). Mr.
Shechtman was counsel to Mr. Morgenthau (19g7-1993)t2. under such
circumstances, representing the most visible of what are, undoubtedly, numerous
disqualifring relationships and interests, there is a clear appearance, if not the
actuality, that neither the U.S. Attorney for the Southern District of New york nor

recipient and about which CJA's May 6, 1997 letter to Ms. Hirshman had expressly inquired -
without response from her (at p. 10, supra).

12 This information is from the April 28, 1997 press release arurogncing Mr.
Slrechtmm's appoinbnent to the Ethics Commission, u. *.il as frorn the prior backdated April 14,
1997 press release. These two press releases, referred to in CJA-'s September 15, 1999
supplenrentary ethics complaint (at p. 2), are annexed thereto. The Seitemb€r 15, 1999
supplementary complaint is Exhibit "G" to my septemb er 24, 1999 reply alfidavit.
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the Manhattan District Attorney could not be fair and impartial in their evaluations,
requiring referral to the Justice Department's public lntegrity Section.

One final note as to the s&ltus of the current Article 7E proceeding against the
Commission, relevant to the timeliness of intervention. No sJbstantive
determinations have been made. The proceeding is presently awaiting assignment
of a judge: the first three assigned justices having recused themselves

yours for a quality judiciary,

€Grtq €'7zSaesca^f
ELENA RUTH SASSOWER, Coordinator
Center for Judicial Accountability, Inc. (CJA)

Enclosures

cc: U.S. Attorney for the Southern District of New york/civil Division
ATT: Jane Booth; Chief, Civil Division

Kay Gardiner; Chief, Environmental protecti on
Edward Smith, Chief, Tax and Bankruptcy
Sara Shudofsky, Chief, Civil Rights
Ellen Villalobos, Chief Clerk, Civil Division

U.S. Attorney for the Eastern District of New york
ATT: Andrew weissmann, Deputy chief, criminal Division

District Attorney Morgenthau New york County
ATT: Tom wornam, Deputy chief, Special prosecutions Bureau

New York State Attorney General Eliot Spitzer
ATT: David Nocenti, counsel

Peter pop", Chie{, ..public Integrity Unit-
William Casey, Chief of Investigations, "Public Integrity Unit-

New York State Ethics Commission


